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NOTICE OF VIOLATION ;

AND

PROPOSED IMPOSITION OF CIVIL PENALTIES

. Tennessee Valley Authority Docket Nos. 50-259, 50-260,
Browns Ferry Units 1, 2, and 3 and 50-296

License Nos. DPR-33, DPR-52,
and DPR-68

' EA 84-108

As a result of an inspection conducted August 14 through September 6, 1984,
several violations of NRC requirements were confirmed. The underlying cause of
these violations appears to be the failure of the licensee's management control
system to assure adherence to regulatory requirements. The August 14, 1984 over-

-pressurization of the Unit 1 core spray system occurred while conducting a core
-spray system logic surveillance test with the reactor operating at 100 percent steady
state power. The inspection results indicated that the air control solenoid
for the actuator of the core spray system inboard isolation valve was incorrectly
rebuilt during maintenance sometime prior to the beginning of the current fuel
cycle on December 29, 1983. This, in conjunction with operator error and
procedural deficiencies which caused the opening of the inboard injection valve
during the performance of the core spray logic surveillance test, resulted in
backflow of reactor coolant into the low pressure core spray system. The low
pressure section of the core spray system was overpressurized and portions of the
core spray system piping were heated to approximately 400*F. In addition, as a
result of this event, thirteen persons. received minor radioactive skin contamina-
tion.

The violations identified during this inspection resulted from the failure of
the licensee's management control system to assure adherence to regulatory
requirements. Previous failures of the licensee's management control system
led to the development and implementation of the Browns Ferry Regulatory
Performance Improvement Program. To emphasize the need for the licensee to
increase his efforts for an effective management control system to assure
adherence to regulatory requirements and to minimize the possibility for the
recurrence of similar events, the Nuclear Regulatory Commission proposes to
impose civil penalties in the amount of One Hundred Thousand Dollars ($100,000).
In accordance with the " General Statement of Policy and Procedure for NRC

,

Enforcement Actions," 10 CFR Part 2, Appendix C, as revised, 49 FR 8583
(March 8, 1984), and pursuant to Section 234 of the Atomic Energy Act of 1954,
as amended, 42 U.S.C. 2282, PL 96-295, and 10 CFR 2.205, the particular
-violations and associated civil penalties are set forth below:

1., Technical Specification 3.7.D.1 requires that during reactor power operation,
the primary containment isolation valves listed in Table 3.7. A shall be
operable. Table 3.7. A lists as a containment isolation valve the core spray
discharge to reactor check valve FCV-75-26.

Contrary to the above, from at least December 29, 1983 (the beginning of
the current fuel cycle) until August 21,1984 (the discovery of the error),
Unit 1 core spray discharge to reactor check valve FCV-75-26 was not

.

operable. During this time, the testable check valve was held open by its '

test actuator during power operation and might not have closed if a line
break had occurred outside the containment.
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' Notice of Violation -2-

2. Technical Specification 6.3.A requires that detailed written procedures,
including applicable checkoff lists covering maintenance operations and
surveillance requirements be prepared, approved and adhered to.

.A. Contrary to the above, during the performance of Surveillance
Instruction (SI) 4.28-39A, Core Spray Logic Functional Test, on
August 14,1984 step 4.1.h was not followed in that the circuit

,

breaker for flow control valve FCV-75-25 was not opened as required.

B. Contrary to the above, as of August 14, 1984 SI 4.2.8-39A did not
specify the correct reactor Motor Operated Valve (MOV) electrical
distribution' board in this same step 4.1.h of the procedure. "MOV

board 2A (MOV board 28)" are listed in the SI instead of the correct
- MOV boards 1A and IB.

3.. Technical Specification 6.3.A requires that detailed written procedures
'be prepared, approved, and adhered to. TVA Topical Report TVA-TR-75-1,
Quality Assurance Program Description, Table 17.2-5, requires compliance
with Regulatory Guide 1.33 which endorses ANSI N18.7-1976. ANSI N18.7-1976,
in paragraph 5.2.6 requires independent verification, where appropriate,

~to ensure that necessary measures, such'as tagging equipment, have been
-fsplemented correctly.

Contrary to the above, as of August 14, 1984 SI 4.2.8-39A did not require
independent verification to ensure that the circuit breaker for valve
FCV 75-25 was opened as required by step 4.1.h of the procedure. The
failure to open the circuit breaker for FCV 75-25 resulted in the oeer-
pressurization of the core spray loop for approximately 15 minutes until
this abnormal plant condition was discovered.

. Collectively,' violations 1 through'3 have been evaluated as a Severity Level III
problem (Supplement I).

.(Cumulative Civil Penalty - $50,000 assessed equally among the violations.)

4. 10 CFR Part 50, Appendix B, Criterion IV, as implemented by the licensee
Quality Assurance Manual, Part III, Section 2 and Standard Practice 16.3,
requires that measures shall be established to assure that applicable
regulatory requirements, design basis, and other requirements, which are
necessary to assure adequate quality are suitably included or referenced
.in the documents for procurement.of material.

Contrary to the above, parts used to rebuild QA Level II ASCO 8344 series
solenoid valves were procured without reference to any quality assurance
requirements. . Testable check valve FCV 75-26 was apparently rebuilt during
a previous outage using these parts, since these were'the only parts
available, and maintenance records do not show another source of parts.

5. 10 CFR Part 50, Appendix B, Criterion V, as implemented by TVA Topical Report
.TVA-TR-75-1, Section 17.1A.5, requires that activities affecting quality
shall be prescribed by drawings or procedures of a type appropriate'to the
circumstances and shall be accomplished in accordance with these drawings
or procedures.
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-Contrary to the above,

A. Prior to August 23, 1984, Mechanical Maintenance Instruction 51,
Maintenance of Critical System Structures Components (CSSC)/Non-CSSC
Valves and Flanges, did not contain adequate post maintenance
instructions to ensure proper valve operation, mechanically or
electrically. The valves had routinely been worked by the skill-
of-the-craft method with no check valve operability test conducted,
or' inadequate testing was conducted to demonstrate operability.

B. On' August-21, 1984 the licensee determined that the Unit 1 core spray
system testable check valve FCV-75-26 control and indicating circuitry
was found to have the electrical leads reversed from the position shown
on the system drawing for the magnetic and actuator limit switches.
As shown on drawing 730E930, these switches indicate the valve position
of the containment isolation valve.

C. On August 21, 1984 a review of power stores records by the NRC
inspector revealed that the Unit 1 core spray system testable check
vai n FCV-75-26 4-way solenoid valve was not in accordance with
drawing PD-420870. Plant drawings require the use of an ASCO WPHTX
834472 type valve whereas the plant uses an ASCO HTX 8344A73. The
above noted valves are not equivalent in design characteristics, and
no safety evaluation was available to indicate _an equivalency or
that a design change had been instituted.

'6. 10 CFR Part 50, Appendix B, Criterion VII, as implemented by TVA Topical
Report TVA-TR 75-1,' Section 17.1A.7 and Standard Practices 16.4 and 16.5,
requires that measures shall be established'to assure that purchased
material conforms.to the procurement dccuments.'

Contrary to the above, four ASCO solenoid valves ordered on requisition
-number 332421, March 4,1982, were received 'on September 11, 1982. The
receipt inspection conducted on the valves was inadequate in that the
valves received had model/part numbers different from the contract
. purchase requisition valve description.

7. 10 CFR Part 50, Appendix B, Criterion XI as implemented by TVA Topical'
Report TVA-TR 75-1,~Section~17.2.11, requires that a test program _shall
be established to assure that all testing required to demonstrate that-
structures, systems, and components will-perform' satisfactorily in service
is' identified and performed in accordance with written test procedures

.which incorporate the requirements and acceptance limits contained in
--applicable design documents. In addition,~10 CFR 50.55a(g) requires..the
licensee to test valves in accordance with the ASME Boiler and Pressure
Vessel Code, Section XI, 1974 Edition, with' Addenda through summer 1975<

'(hereafter refer ed;to as the "ASME' Code"). 'As stated in this Code, its test
requirements apply to Class 1, 2, and 3 valves (classified in accordance with
criteria given in NRC Regulatory Guide 1.26) except that valves used for-
operating convenience only may be' excluded.
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Contrary to the above, as of-this inspection the licensee had not performed
tests required by the ASME Code for certain valves which are of the specified
classes and do not qualify for exclusion. The tests omitted and the involved --

valves are as follows: i|
4

i A. Code subsection IWV-3200 requires that a valve that has undergone
.

| maintenance that could affect its performance be tested to '

i demonstrate its performance parameters prior to return to service.
The licensee performed maintenance on the actuating solenoid and |

- on the indicator circuitry of core spray system check valve
,

FCV 75-26 during the refueling outage completed in December of 1983
but failed to test the valve to verify proper performance of its

| opening and closing functions or to verify proper remote position
indication.

<
,

8. ASME Cods subsection IWV-3510 specifies testing requirements for relief
' valves.- Core spray system valves 75-543A and 75-5438 are designated
as relief valves in FSAR Section 6.4. Further, their relief capacity

,

is used by the licensee as a basis for setting valve leakage limits<

i between high and low pressure piping through valves FCV 75-26 and
FCV 75-54 (to assure the low pressure piping is not overpressurized), L

'_as described in the licensee's SI 3.2.5. The licensee has not*

' performed the Code required testing on valves FCV 75-543A and 75-5438,
,

>

because these valves were considered to be valves for thermal protection !
'

2 rather than relief valves.
!

'

Collectively, violations 4 through 7 have been evaluated as a Severity
Level III problem (Supplement I).

,

(Cumulative Civil Penalty - $50,000 assessed equally among the violations.)
4

i Pursuant to 10 CFR 2.201, Tennessee Valley Authority is hereby required to submit
.

.

*

| to the Director, Office of Inspection and Enforcement, USNRC, Washington,-
! - D. C. 20555, with a copy to the Regional Administrator, U.S. Nuclear Regulatory

Commission, Region II, 101 Marietta Street, Suite 2900, Atlanta, Georgia 30323,t

within 30 days of the date of this Notice a written statement or explanation
,

including for each alleged violation: (1) admission or denial of the allegedg
i violations, (2) the reasons for the violation if admitted, (3) the corrective *

L steps which have been taken and the results achieved,=(4) the corrective steps
| which will be tak(n to avoid further violations, and (5) the date when full

! compliance will be achieved. Consideration may be given to extending the
response time for good cause shown. Under the authority'of Section 182 of the[

' Act, 42 U.S.C. 2232, the response shall be submitted under oath or affirmation.|- -

- Within the same time as provided for the response required above under
i' 10 CFR 2.~201, Tennessee Valley Authority may pay the civil penalties in the amount

' of $100,000 or may protest imposition of the civil penalties in whole or in part
b; by a written answer. Should Tennessee Valley ~ Authority fall to answer within
L the time specified, the Director, Office of Inspection and Enforcement, will
| issue an Order imposing the civil penalties in the amount proposed above.

,
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Notice of Violation -5-

Should Tennessee Valley Authority elect to file an answer in accordance
with 10 CFR 2.205 protesting the civil penalties, such answer may: (1) deny the
violations listed in this Notice in whole or in part, (2) demonstrate extenuating
circumstances, (3) show error in this Notice, or (4) show other reasons why the
penalty should not be imposed. In addition to protesting the civil penalties in
whole-or in part, such answer may request remission or mitigation of the penalties.
In requesting mitigation of the proposed penalties, the five factors addressed in
Section V(B) of 10 CFR Part 2, Appendix C, as revised 49 FR 8583 (March 8, 1984),
should be addressed. Any written answer in accordance with 10 CFR 2.205 should
be set forth separately from the statement or explanat#on in reply pursuant to
10 CFR 2.201 but may incorporate by specific reference (e.g., citing page and
paragraph numbers) to avoid repetition. Tennessee Valiey Authority's attention
is directed to the other provisions of 10 CFR 2.205 regarding the procedures for
imposing a civil penalty.

Upon failure to pay the penalties due, which has been subsequently determined in
accordance with the applicable provisions of 10 CFR 2.205, this matter may be
referred to the Attorney General, and the penalties, unless compromised, remitted,
or mitigated may be collected by civil action pursuant to Section 234c of the
Act, 42 U.S.C. 2282.

FOR THE NUCLEAR REGULATORY COPMISSION

ORONAl 90NED sy

MMES P. O'REllt.Y
James P. O'Reilly
Regional Administrator

_ Dated at Atlanta, Georgia
'thistfMdayofJanuary1985o
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